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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Board of Directors of IL&FS AMC Trustee Limited

Report on the Financial Statements

'1. Opinion

Name of Schemes
IL&FS lnfrastructure Debt Fund Series 1C

we have audited the accompanying financial statements of the following schemes of IL&FS
Mutual Fund (lDF) - closed ended Debt Schemes (the ,,Schemes,,) which comprise the
Balance sheet as at March 31 , 2024,ihe Revenue Account and the cash Flow statement for
the year then ended and notes to lhe financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.
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ln our opinion and to the best of our information and according to lhe explanations given to us,
the aforesaid financial statements of the schemes mentioned above give a true and fair view in
conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in lndia, including the accounting
policies and standards specified in the Ninth schedule to the Securities and Exthange Board of
lndia (Mutual Funds) Regulations, 1996, as amended (the,SEBl Regulations,,) :

a) ln the case ofthe Balance sheet, ofthe state of affairs oflhe schemes as at March 3i,2oz4
b) ln the case of the Revenue Account, of the surplus for the year ended on that date and
c) ln the case of the cash Flow statement, of the cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditino
(SAs) issued by the lnstitute of Chartered Accountants of lndia ('lCAl'). Our responsibilities undei
those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Financial statements section of our report. we are independent of the schemes in accordance
with the Code of Ethics issued by lCAl together with the ethical requirements that are relevanl
to our audit of the financial statements, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficienl and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the
financial statements.

Emphasis of Matter
we draw attention to Note No. 1 of notes to accounts forming part of Financial statements
regarding maturity of series 1c on 29'h April 2024 resulting in series 1 being completely matured
and closed as of that date. Our opinion is not modified with respect to above.

Key Audit Matters
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance
in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These maflers were addressed in
the context of our audit ofthe financial statements as a whole and in forming our opinion thereon,
and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. we have delermined lhe matters
described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report.
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Key Audit Matters Auditors Response

Existe ce and Valuation of investments

The investments held by the schemes as on
March 31 , 2024, mainly comprised of Debt
instrumenls.
There is a risk of existence of investmenls
and that the fair value of inveslments is not
determined appropriately.
Accordingly, the existence and valuation of
investments is considered as a key audit
matler.

We performed the following audit procedures:. Assessed the design and implementation of
controls over exislence and valuation of
investments.. Tested the controls set up by Management
on sample basis on existence and valuation
of lnvestments.

. Traced, the quantity held as per books with
the confirmation provided by Custodian as of
year end.. Tested the valuation of investments on
sample basis as per the investment
valuation policy approved by the Trustees
and with the SEBI Regulations

lnformation other than financial statements and Auditor,s report thereon
The Board of Direclors and Management of IL&FS AMc rrustee Limited (the Trustees) and
lL&FS lnfra Asset Management Limited (the "AMC") are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the Trustee's Report but does not
include the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon. The Trustee's Report is
expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditor,s report.

our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

ln connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the
other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statiments or our knowledge
obtained in the audit, or otheMise appears to be materially misstated.

when we read the other information included in the above reporls, if we conclude that there is
material misstatement therein, we are required to communicate lhe matter to those charged with
governance.

6. Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements
The Board of Directors and Management of IL&FS AMc rrustee Limited (the "Trustee") and
lL&FS lnfra Asset Management Limited (the "AMc") are responsible for the preparation of ihese
financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance,
and cash flows of the Schemes in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in
lndia, including the accounting policies standards specified in the Ninth Schedule to the SEBI
Regulations. This responsibility includes mainlenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the sEBl Regulations, the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequale internal controls relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial

W
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stalements that give a lrue and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

ln preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the scheme's
ability to continue as a going concern, discrosing, as applicabre, matters related t6 going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intenis tj liquidate
the Schemes or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternalive but to do so.

Those charged with governance are also responsible for overseeing the scheme's financial
reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs willilways detect a material
misstatement when il exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

i) ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
lo fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufticient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error.
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, orihe override
of internal control.

ii) Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressiig
an opinion on the effectiveness of such controls.

iii) Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

iv) conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of lhe going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a maleriJl uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Schemes to
continue as a going concern. lf we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial slatements or,
if such disclosures are Inadequate, to modify our opinion. our conclusions are based on the audil
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Schemes to cease to continue as a going concern.

v) Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and
the disclosures, and whether the financial stateme
evenls in a manner that achieves fair presentation

content of the financial statements, including
nts represent the underlying transactions and
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We communicate with the Management, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit lindings, including any significant deficiencies in internal conlrol
that we identiry during our audit.

We also provide to the Management with a statement thatwe have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters thal were of most significance in the audit of financial slatements of the current year and
are therefore the key audit matters. we describe these mafters in our auditor's report unless law
or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumslances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communicalion.

8. Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
i) As required by Regulation 55(4) and ctause 5(ii)(2) of the Eteventh schedule of the sEBt

Regulations, we reporl that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit;

b) The financial statements have been prepared in conformity wilh the accounting policies and
standards specified in the Ninth Schedule to the SEBI Regulations;

c) the Balance sheet, the Revenue Account and the cash Flow statement dealt with by this
report are in agreement with the books of account of the Schemes.

ii) As required by the Eight Schedule of the SEBI Regulations, we report that:

a) ln our opinion, and on the basis of information and explanations given to us, the methods
used to value non-traded securities as at March 31,2024 are in accordance with the SEBI
Regulations and other guidelines approved by the Board of Directors of the Trustee and the
AMC, and are fair and reasonable.

For Mukund M. Chitale & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No. 106655W

gbl)L-
S. M. Chitale
Partner
M. No. 111383
UDI N: 241 1 1 383BKBGRS4398
Place: Mumbai
Date: July 24,2024
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(l) Background

IL&FS Mutual Fund (lDF) ('the Fund') has b€€'n con$inrted as a Trust in accordance

with the provisions of the lndian Trusts Act, 1882 with I[.&FS Financial Services
Limited ("IFIN") as the Sponsor, IL&FS Infra Asset Management Limited as the
lnvestment Manager and It &FS AMC Trustee Limited as the Trustee. The Trust Deed

has been registered under the lndian Registration Act, 1908 on January 21, 2013 and

amended through Deed of amendment on September 5, 2013. The lnvestment
Managemont Agreement htween lt&FS Infra Asset Management Limited (the AMC).
I[.&FS AMC Trustee Limited (lhe Trustee) and the trust was executed on January 21,
2Ol3 and amended on September 5,2013. The Fund has been registered with SEBI on

February 1,2013 under Registration Code MF/072l13i02. With effect from January l,
2017, sponsor of the Fund was changed fiom IFIN to IL&FS lnvestment Managers

Limited ("tlML"), consequently Trust Deed and Investment Management Agreement
were amended on January 16,2017.

IL&FS Infrasfucture Debl Fund Series lB and lC is a closed ended Scheme for 7

Years and t0 Years respectively. The scheme was launched on June 18,2013 and units
were fully paid up on April 30,2014 and consequently the maturity period is counted
from April 30,2014. Series lB is matured on 29'h April 2021 and redemption value is
paid in full to the investom. Series lC is matured on 29'h Aptil 2024 and rcdemption
value is paid in full to the investors.

Unis are having face value of{ 1,000,000 and are fully paid-up. The units are listed on

the National Stock Exchange of lndia on May 07, 2014.

The Investnent objective of the scheme is to generate income and capital appreciation
by investing primarily in infrastructure debl insfuments as p€rmitted by SEBI from
time to time.

With Series lC maturing on 29'h April 2024 and redemption value paid in full to the
investors, Series I is completely matured and closed as ofthat date.

(2) Significartaccountirgpolicies

a) Basis ofpreparation offinancial statements

The financial statements are prepared and present€d under the historical cost
conyention, as modified for investments which are stated at fair value at the
balance sheet date, on accrual basis of accounting and in accordance with the
accounting policies and standards specified in the Ninth Schedule of the
Securities and Exchange Board of tndia (Mutual Funds) Regulations, 1996 as

amended (the "SEBI Regulations").

b) Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles (GAAP), which requires Management to make
judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounling
polici€s and reported amounts ofassets, liabilities, income and expenses and lhe
disclosure of contingent liabilities on the date of the financial statements.

Actual results could differ from those estimates. Estimates and underlying
assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis.

Any revision to accounting estimates is recognized
future periods.

(4
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c) Investmetrts

(i) Basis ofaccounting

Transactions for purchase and sale of investments are recorded on trade date.

The cost of investrnents includes all cosls incurred in acquiring the
investments and incidental to acquisition of investments. Any front end-
discount on privately placed investments is reduced fiom the cos of such

investments.

(ii) Valuation

The valuation of investment is based on the guiding principles of fair
valuation.

Where it is observed that Valuation methodology mentiond below, does

not lead to fair valuation of securities, Valuation Committe€ may on a
prospective basis deviate from the defined methodology and adopt such

altemate procedures / methods in conformance with the guiding principtes

offair valuation in good faith to arrive at the true and fair estimation ofthe
realizable value ofthc security. The rationale for any such deviations would
be recorded in writing and placed before the Board of Directors of the
AMC and the Trustee.

Valuation ofthe securities; anived as per the policy; is applied consistently
across the portfolios. [n other words; any panicular security is valued on
the same basis across all the portfolios and it cannot have different base for
valuation on a particular day.

VALUATION METHODOLOGIES

Debt, Money Market and related securities - All debt, money market and

related securities. Infrastructure Debt Fund (IDF) is a close ended fund, it
does not do marked-to-market valuation ofsecurities and all its investments
are held to maturity. tt also does not trade its investments. There is no risk
matrix available for the kind of investment that IDF inyests in.

In view of above and fte illiquid nature of infrastructure debt securities,

having minimal or no secondary market, the valuation of infiastructure debt
securities is done on a current effective yield basis (face value of security
plus interest accrued).

Considering that IDF does not rade its investments, all money market
instruments and other debt securities are valued on a current effective yield
basis (face value ofsecurity plus interest accrued).

Valuation of money market 8nd debt securities which are rated below
itrvestmetrt grade:

IDF accounts for actual retum received on investmelts across its schemes
in calculating the NAV, as long as the investments are standard and
cootinue !o service their debt obligations.

There is no mark-down as long as servicing in respect ofthe inyestments is
bcing done on time.

ln case of mark-down ofinyestsnents, the same is u
with regulations and specific details ofthe investme 6 l=

/QMUMBAI
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Broken period interest paid/received is not included in the cost of purchase of
investments.
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lnveslment in Rcvcrse Repo, Collsterslized Borrowings rnd Lending
Obligstions (CBLO), Tri-Party Repo CIREPS) and Bills Rediscounting
(BRDS):

Investment in Reverse Repo's, CBLO's, TREPS and BRDS are valued at
cost plus accrued interest.

Profit or loss on sale / redemption of investments represents sale proceeds less

weighted average cost and is recognised on a trade date basis.

Transfer of Investments from one scheme to another scheme is made as per the
valuation policy in conformity with th€ investnent objective of the scheme to
which such transfer has been made.

Expenses
The total expense ratio charged to scheme are within the limits prescribed under
Regulation 52 ofthe SEBI Regulations.

All expenses identifiable with any panicular scheme are accounted on an accrual
basis. Expenses not identifiable with any particular scheme are generally allocated
to the schemes in proponion to the number of folios in the schemes or Average
Assets under management (AAUM), whichever is more appropriate.

Computrtion ofNet Asset Vslue (NAu
The NAV of a scheme is computed separately for unis issued under the various
options of the relevant plans of the I[&FS lnfrastructure Dcbt Fund Series lC,
although the corresponding scheme's investments and other net assets are
managed as a single portfolio. For computing the NAV for various planVoptions,
daily income eamed, including realized and unrealized gains or losses in the value
of investments and expenses incurred by the corresponding scheme are allocated to
the plans/options in proportion to the net assets of each plan/option.

0

d)

e)

c)

h) t oad

Pursuant to SEBI circular no SEBI/IMD/CIR NO.4/168230/09 dated June 30,

q

N\. CHi2009, no entry load is charged

rA

--ll

Revenu€ rccognitiotr
lnterest income is recorded on a period proportionate basis.

hvestor Educatiotr atrd Awareness Expenses
In compliance with SEBI Circular No. CIRAMDIDF/2lf2012 dated September 13,
2012; the scheme has charged 0.02 % ofdaily net assets within the maximum limit
of total expense ratio as per the SEBI Regulations for investor education and
awareness initiatives. Pursuant to the letter dated January 8, 2016, issued by SEBI
to AMFI mandating all members !o transfer 50% of the lnvestor Education and
Awareness fund balance as at March 3t, 2016 and Aom April l, 2016 onwards,
50olo of the 0.02% of daily net assets aside by the Mutual fund, accordingly the
fund has transferred 50% of opening balance and additions for cunent year to
AMFI. The balance amounts are utilized towards investor education and awareness
initiative taken by the Mutual Fund/AMC. Allocation for utilization is done in
different schemes based on the available balance in each scheme.

(r)
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.l tjrit Crpitrl

Serics lClL&FS Mutu!l Fund (lDF)
Prrticulrrs Ar,I Urrch 31.202{ As rt Mrrch 31,2023

I oils \os lmount < t rits:tos. Amount {
Iritirl Crpia.l lrsu.d .nd !!ba.rib.d:
Units of< 10,00,000

Dirccr Plsn - Growth
Dircct Plsn - DiYidcnd

Prid-Up:

Direct Plan - Cro*th Flce value a 10,00,000

Units at b€tinning and end ofthe year

Dircct Plan - Dividend Face Valuc <
10,00,000

Units al beginning ard end ofthc year

[illit Crpitrl rt th..od ofth. y.rr

2.571.t0
It7.50

2,5?, I t,00,000
It,75,00,000

2,571.t0
t87.50

2,57.1E,00,000
18,75.00,000

2.759.J0 2.7s.93,00.000 2.7S9.30 2.7S,9J.00.000

2.571.t0

187.50

2.57.18.00.000

1E.75.00.000

2.571.80

t87.50

2.57.1t.00.000

18,75,00,000

2.759.10 2.7s.9J.00.000 2.759.30 2.75.9.3,00,000
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4 Reserves and surplus
Amount {

+ The reserves and surplus are allocated between $owth and dividend option in proportion ofthe
number ofunits outstanding against each option.

IL&FS Mutual Fund (IDF) Series lC

Particulars As at March 31,2024 As at March 31,2023

Revenue Reserve
At the beginning ofthe year

Transferred to Revenue account

Unit Premium on Redemption of Units
Surplus transferred from Revenue account

2,21,32,91,187
(2,2t,32,9t,187)

3,27,23,76,325

1,65,15,24,271
(t,6s,3s,24,27 t)

2,21,32,9t,187

At the end of the year 3,2723,76325 2,21J2,91,187
Redemption on Scheme Matutit!
Total 32723,76325 2,2132,91,187

Reserves and surplus for each option:-

Direct Plan - Growth *

Direct Plan - Dividend Option *
3,05,00,11,754

22,23,64,57t
2,06,28,93,587

15,03,97,600

Total 3,27 23,76,32s 2,21,32,91,187

NlBAI
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5 Current liabilities and provisions

+ Other payable includes audit fees, internal audit fees, custody fees etc.

Amount {
IL&FS Mutual Fund (IDF) Series lC

Particulars
As at March 31,

2024
As at March 31,

2023

Creditors for
-lnvestment Management fee payable

-Trustee fee payable

-Other payable +

Income received in advance

Provision for Investor Education and Awareness
Statutory dues

52,80,492
55,007

2,79,9t0
t0

31,51,822

5,19,944

43,5 8,801

45,406
12,s2,726
78,03,s89
25,78,006
4.t2,279

Total 92,87,185 1,64,50,807

M MBAI a



6Investments

Note:
I ) Investments are stated inclusive of interest accrued but not due

2) Refer Note l7 - For details of Investments

Amount {
IL&FS Mutual Fund (IDF) Series lC

As at March 31,,2024 As at March 31, 2023

Particulars Cost Cost
Market / Fair

Value

Non Convertible Debentures

Listed On Recognised Stock

Exchange

Non Convertible Debentures-

Privately Placed

Money Market Instruments

2,12,53,66,599

2,33,00,00,000

99,35,70,557

2,13,26,92,897

2,33,00,00,000

99,35.70,557

t,46,02,53,t5t

3,22,23,07,425

1,46,02,53,151

3.22,23,07,425

Total 5.44.89J7.156 5.45.62.63.454 4,6E2s,60,s76 4.6825.60.576

M MBAI

ri. CHi

(/)

Market / Fair
Value



7 Other Current assets

* Certain bank accounts ofthe Scheme are held in the name ofthe Fund.
*+ Triparty Repo is registered in the name ofthe Fund.

8 Interest Income

9 Other Income

Amount {

Amount {

Amount {

IL&FS Mutual Fund (IDF) Series lC

Particulars
As at March 31,

2024
As at March 31,

2023

Balances with a bank in current accounti (Refer

Note 2(h)
- Current Accounts
- IEAP Accounts
- Triparty Repo Accounts

Triparty Repo**
Triparty Repo margin
Misc Receivable

39,29,023
30,49,961

57.43.63,455

33,57,587
30

28,17,30,702
40,67,238

30
Total 58,47,00,056 30.64.81.418

IL&FS Mutual Fund (IDF) Series lC

Particulars

On Investment in Non Convertible Debentures

On Certificate of Deposits / Commercial Papers

On Triparty Repo Margin
On Reverse Repo/Triparty Repo

45,31,74,810
7 5,77,5s7

2.19,457

4.23.25.336

32,82,32,502
l,68,08,988

3,91,347

8,90,17,240

Total 50,32,97,160 43,44,50,077

IL&FS Mutual Fund (IDF) Series I C

Particulars
For the Year

ended March 31,
2024

For the Year
ended March 31,

2023

Misc Income 74,93,778 4,04,33,280

Total 74,93,778 4,04,33r80

M MBAI

$.

Acc

a

2

1,81,89,524

24,93,924

tr'or the Year
ended March 31,

2024

For the Year
ended March 31,

2023



(10) lnveslment Management fees

The Scheme has paid or provided for investment management fees in accordance with the
agreement with the AMC as amended from time to time and the Scheme Information
Documents read with Statement Additional lnformation. For the current period, the
Scheme has accrued lnvestment Management Fees at the rale of0.960lo (excluding GST) of
average daily net assets (AAUM) as follows:

Amount in

(l l) Trusteeship fees

The schemes have paid or provided for trustee fees in accordance with the agreement with
the Trustee as amended from time to time and the Scheme Information Documents read
wilh Surement of Additional lnformation, The Trustee is entitled to receive such fee up to
an annual rate of0.0l7o ofthe scheme's average daily net assets.

(12) Custodian fees

HDFC Bank Limited provides custodian services to the schem€s for which it reccives
custodian fees as per the terms ofthe custodian agreement.

(13) Other Expenses

Other expenses consist of intemal audit fees, bank charges and CCIL charges, SEBI
Charges, etc.

(14) Income/Expenditure

For the Year ended March 31, 2024:

Series lncome Expense Ratio
(Amount {) (% to AAUM) (Amouot {) (% to AAUM)

Series I C | , t2,53,19,702 19.92o/o 6,62,54,564 t.t7%

LU
...,\

lnfrastructure
Debt Fund
Series

AAUM for
the Yesr

ended March
31,2024

Maoagemertt
Fees

AAUM for
the Year

ended March
31,2023

Matrrgcmetrt
Fees

4,48,1t,785Series lC 5,64,92,60,620 5,42,32,9t7 4,66,7E,93,062

o

6. CH/

The total income and expenditure as a p€rcentage of the Average daily net assets are as

follows:

c,)



For the Year ended March 31, 2023:

Series lncome Expense Ratio
(Amouna {) (o/o ro AAUM) (Amount a) (% to AAUM)

Series lC 61,45,1 I,994 13.160/o 5,47,45,O78 l.lllo

(15) Income tax

No income tax pmvision has been made as the schemes qualify as a recognized Mutual
Fund under seclion l0 (23D) of the lncome-tax Act, 196l and the Direct Tax Laws
(Amendment) Act, 1988.

(16) Net Asset Vrlue per unit
Amount

(17) Portfolio holding as at year end are as follows:

As st Msrch 31, 2024

Note l. 10070 provision has been made for lnvestment in Babcock Bo.sig Limi lF

Infrastructure
Debt Fund

Plan Face
Value

As at March 31,
2021

As at March 31.
2023

Dividend l,000,000 21,85,944.3803 78,O2,L20.5345

78,O2,L20.5346
Series lC-Direct
Plan Gro*th 1,000.000 21,85,944.3803

\Iar-2{
IL&FS Infrastructure Debt Fund Scries lC Series lC
Particulars Fair Value

(Amount {)
9/o of Net
.{ssets

o/o of Citegory

lnfrsstructure Sector

Non Convcrtiblc Dcbcrtu.ct-Lkt.d
NTPC Ltd

Inox wind Limited

Emami FEnk Ross Limited

I .47 .26.92.891

50.00.00.000

16.00.00.000

24.420/"

8.2v/"

2.65vo

69.05Yo

23.44%

1.5v/o

2,1 3,26p2.897 35.J6% 100.00%

lnfrr!aruclur. S.ctor
Non Convcrtiblc Dcbctrturcs Privrtcly Plsccd

Shrcm Enterprises Private Ltd
DBL Infratech Private Ltd

Utkarsh Trading & Holdings Ltd

Th€ Bornbey Burmah Trading Corporation Ltd

Resco Global Wind Serviccs P!'t Ltd

75,00.00,000

50,00.00.000

8,00,00,000

50.00,00,000

50,00,00,000

t2.43%

8.29Yo

t.33vo

a.29yo

8.2y/o

32.194/0

2t.46vo

3.43vo

2t.46vo

21.460/0

B 2,33,00,00,000 38.63vo t00-000/"

Commcr.irl P.pers

ICICI Securities Ltd CP 29-Apt-21 99.35.70,557 16.17% 100.000/o

C 99J5,70,557 t6.t7yo 100.00%

Total ln!estments (A+B+(') 5,J5,62,63,{5.r 90.16./0

Net Current Assets 57.5,t.12.871 9.540/"

Nea Assets 6,0J,t 6,76,325 100.00%

Ltd and IL*.FS Wind Energy Limited. Refer note 22 urd23
&Co

zlzIrl a.

(,,)

*

o



As 8t Msrch 31,2023

(lE) Aggregate value of purchases ard Sales/Redemption/Repayment

The aggregate value of investments purchased and sold (including redeemed) during the
period and expressed as percentage ofdaily average net assets are as follows:

Mar-23

IL&FS lnfrastruclure Debt Fund Series 1C Series 1C

Particulars Fair value
(Amount l)

% of Net
Assets

%ol
Category

lnfrastructure Sector

Non Convertible DeberturEs-Listed
Bhilangana Hydro Power ttd
Inox Wind Limited

Enumi Frank Ross Limited

Ttre Bombay Burmah Trading Corporation l-td

4,00,00,000

7,1,00,00,000

33,00,00,000

35,02,53,151

o.80%

74.88%

6.64%

?.o4%

2.7 4%

s0.68%

22.60%

23.99%

A 1,6,o2,53,151 29.37% 100.00%

lnfrastructure Sector

Non Cotrvertible Debetrtures Privately Placed

Shrem Enrerprises Private Ud
ShrEm lnfra Structure Private Lrd

AMRI Hospitals lrl
Bhilangna Hydro Power I.:d

Karrhanjunga Power Company Private Lld
Resco Global Wind Services Limited

Clean Max En Energi Solution hivate tld
DBL Infratech PriYate Ltd
Utkash Trading & Holdinp trd
The Bombay 

-Burmah 
Tmding Corporation trd

65,00.00,000

26,18.52,696

3,99,47,880

4,00,00,000

5,00.00,000

50,00,00,000
35,00,00,000

75,00,00,000

8,00,00,000

50,05,06,649

73.O7%

5.27%

0.80%

0.80%

L.Ol%

70.06%

7.O4%

L5.O8/o

t.67%
to.o7%

20.77%

4.73%

7.24%

7.24%

7.55o/o

15.52%
10.86%

23.28o/o

2.48%

L5.53%

B 3,22,23,07,425 u.ao% 100.00%

Totsl Investmetrts (A+B) 4,5A,25,60,s76 94.1704

Net Curreri Assets 29,00,30,611 5.83./.

Net Assets 4,97,25,9\LA7 100.00%

IL&FS
Infrastructure

Debt Fund

For the Year ended March 31, 2024
Aggregate value

ofPurchase
(Amount {)

Percentage
of Average
Net Assets

Aggregate value of Sales /
Redemptioo / RepaymeDt

(Amount ()

Percentage
ofAverage
Net Assets

Series lC 3,71,18,55,663 65.71o/o 3,03,99.47,880 53.81%

M tu19At

o

t

$. Cr,/

0 ACc

Note l. 1009/0 provision has been made for Investment in Babcock Borsig Limited Williamson
Magor & Co, Ltd and IL&FS Wind Energl Limited. Refer note 22 and 23.

For the Year ended March JI, 2024

(4

./i
\

AI



IL&FS
I n frastructu re

Dcbt Fuod

For the Ycar erded March 31,2023
Aggr€gste value

of Purchase
(Amount O

Aggreg8te value ofSsles /
Redemption / Repsyme]lt

(Amoutrt O

Percetrtagc
ofAverage
Net Ass€ts

Series lC 4.71,21,2t,l25 t00.95% 3,23,28,0',7,507 69.26%

For the Year cnded Msrch 31. 2023

(19) Aggregate Fair value of Noo-Traded Investments

The aggregate fair value of non-traded investments, valued in 'good faith' by
the lnvestment Manager on the basis of the valuation principles laid down by
SEBI as on 3l'r March 2024: NIL (As on 3l'r March 2023: NIL)

The aggregate fair value of debt securities which have been valued at the price

other than the price given by the independent valuation agencies is as follows -
ll

hfrastructure
Debt Fund

As at March 31.
2024

Percentage of
Net Assets

As at March 31,
2023

Percentage of
Net Assets

Series lC 5.45.62.63.454 90.460/o 4.68,25.60,57 6 94.17%

(20) lovestment in the S€curities of the Spolsors and Group Companies of the
Sponsors
The Company has following investment in the securities of group companies of the
sponsors as at 3l't March 2024; NIL as at 3l " March 2023: NIL

Pursuant to rating downgrade of IWEL, II*FS IDF had sought pre-payment
of the NCDS from IWEL.

The entire value of NCDs of IL&FS Wind Energy Ltd (IWEL) had been
provided for, as a conservative valuation approach, as on 30 September 2021
as the NCDS had fallen due.

IDF has accounted the lncome from amount recovered in its books of
accounts to the extent ofrecovery amounting to F.s. 37,76,79,584/-.

As per SEBI Regulations, IDF has made provision for the erltire outstanding exposure

in IWEL. Summary of provisions made and recovery during the year ended March 31,

$. qH/
//"':rV \\

a
C

o
lt
//

lviSAlM

2024 & March 31,2023 is as given below:

ACc

ll*-/

Percentrge
ofAverage
Net Assets

(21) IL&FS IDF invested in Zero Coupon NCDs amounting to Rs. 2,000 million
issued by IWEL in September 2016.

After series of legal actions, IDF has received Rs. 252.63 crores against
admitted claim of Rs. 254.66 crores. IDF has received -99Yo of its admifted
claims in luly 2023 as per interim distribution by IWEL from the proceeds

received by IWEL from the sale of its wind SPvs to ORIX. Accordingly, IDF
has filed for withdrawal of its case from Hon'ble Supreme Court given the
substantial extent of recovery made in the account.

LL
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Series

Opening
Provision(A)

Provirion
mrde

durinS ahc
year (B)

Rcvcrsal of Provisioo
mgde on0ccount of

rccovcria! duringtha
ye.r (C)

Closing
Provision
(D) = (A+B-C)

IC 37.8s.51.470 3't,76,79,584 8,7 t,E86

(22)

March 3l- 2024

March 3l - 2023

S€ries

Opening
Provision(A)

Provirion
mrdc

durirg thc
y.rr (B)

Rcversrl of Provision
mrde onrccounl of

racoverica duringthe
yerr (C)

Closing
Provkion
(D) = (A+B-C)

IC 37,85,5 t,470 37,85,51,470

a) Invcstrnent in Babcock Borsig Limited has become NPA on November 01, 2019.

IDF has stopped accruing Interest w.e.f. October 0l, 2019 on conservative basis.

As per SEBI Regulations, IDF has made provision for the entire outstanding exPosure

in Babcock Borsig Limired. Summary ofprovisions made and recovery during the year

ended March 31, 2024 & March 31,2023 is as given below:

March 3l , 2024

Series

Opeaing
Provi3ion(A)

Pror ision
made

during the

!car (B)

Reversal of Provision
mrde ooaccount of

.ccoveries durirgthc
y.8r (C)

Closiog
Provision
(D) = (A+B-C)

rc 40 ,63,55 ,526 t 4,30,79 .902 26.32,75,624

March 31, 2023

Series

Opening
Provision(.t)

Provisioo
made

during the
year (B)

Rcvcrral of Provision
made oniacount of

recovcries duringth€
ycrr (C)

Closing
Provision
(D) = (A+B-C)

IC 49 ,66,21 ,268 9,02,65,742 40,63,55,526

The facility to Babcock Bonig Limited is secured through a combination of listed
shares, land and other securities.

(b) Investment in Williamson Magor & Co. Limited has become NPA on December 01,
2019 on account of non-payment of dues. IL&FS IDF has stopped accruing interest on

NCD facility w.e.f. October 01, 2019 on conservatively basis.

As per SEBI Regulations, IDF has made provision for the entire outstanding exposure

in Williamson Magor & Co. Limited. Summary of provision made and recovery during

al

lo)
t!
\d

\ \-*

M MBAI
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s

the year ended March 31, 2024 & March 31, 2023 is as given



Series
Opcoing
Provision

(A)

Provision
made during
the year (B)

Revelsal of
Provision made on

accouot of
racoveries during

the year (C)

Clo3ing
Provision

(D) = (A+B-C)

24,20,22,083 7.16,E5,730 l"t,03,36,353

March 3l 2024

March 31 2023

The facility to Williamson Magor & Co Limited is secured through combination of
listed shares, land and other securities.

Summary of provisions (across investments) made during the year ended March3l,
2024 is given below:

Summary of provisions (across investments) made during the year ended March3l,
2023 is given below:

(23) SEBI Regulations speciry the percentage ofexpenses that can be charged to schemes of
mutual fund. Accordingly, IDF has not charged full Audit fee (Booked only upto
available limit rest borne by Asset Management Company) to the schemes. Also,
certain other operating expenses are charged to the schemes up to the permissible limit,
and any excess amounts have been bome by the Asset Management Company.

Q4) There are no unpaid redemption and unclaimed dividend as at March 31,2024 (P.Y.
Nil).

(25) (a) There are no unit holders holding over 50%o ofthe net assets in the Schemes as at the
Balanc€ Sheet dates.

(b) There are no amounts to be disclosed as required under SEBI Regulation 25 (l 1) as

the Schemes have not made any investments in the Companies or their Subsidiaries
which have invested mo
2023 to March 3l , 2024

o)
o

*:4

Series
Opening

Provision
(A)

Provision
made during
the ycar (B)

Reversal of
Prcvision mrd€ on

account of
recoveries during

the year (C)

Closing
Provision

(D) = (A+B-C)

29,13,E4.97E 4,93,62,895 24,20,22,083

Series
Opening

Provision
(A)

Provision
rnadcduring
the year(B)

Reversal of Provision
made on account of
recoveries duringthe

year (C)

Closing Provision
(D) = (..\+B-C)

IC r.02.69.29,079 s9,24,45.216 43,44,83.863

Series
Opening

Provision
(A)

Provision
madeduring
the year(B)

Reverssl of Provision
made on account of
recoveries duringthc

year (C)

IC t,16.65,51 ,7 t6 13,96,28,631 t,02,69,29,0',19

ACc

3

+

re than 57o ofthe Net Asset Value for th od April 1,

I!

IC

IC

Closing Provision
(D) = (A+B-C)



(26) Relrt€d party disclosure and disclosur€ uoder regulstion 25(t) of SEBI
RegulltioDs
Related party disclosures pursuanl lo Accounting Standard lE "Related Party

disclosure" issued by the ICAI and disclosure under regulation 25(E) of SEBI
Regulations are made as under:

a) The following are the related parties by control with whom transaction have been entered during
the year:

o lnvestment Manager: IL&FS lnfra Asset Management Limited
. Trustee: tlSFS AMC Trustee Limited
. Sponsor: IL&FS Investment Managers Limited. (lt&FS Financial Services Limited, till

December 31, 2016)

b) Details of transactioos during the year
(Amount l)

c) Year-end payables./Receivables:
Amount {)

(27) Contingent Liabilities/ Inv€stment Commitment details are as under

Details March 31.
2024

March 31.
2023

Underwriting Commitment Nil Nit
Uncalled liability on panly paid-up shares Nit Nit
lnvestment Commitment* Nit Nit
+The allocation between different schemes ofthe mutual fund will be done by the fund

ual

)
lLr

\\

IL&FS
lofrsstructure
Debt Fund Series

IC

Pa rticu lars For the
Yerr

eItded
March 31.

2024

For the
Year

ended
March 31,

2023
Management fees

Trusteeship fees

5.42.32.917

5,64,944

4,4E,1 1,785

4,66,E04

IC

Pa rticu la rs As at
Msrch

3t,2021
Pa!able

Management fees
payable

52,80,492 43.58,801

Trusteeship fees
payable

55,007 45,406

II

o

1i. CHlmanager

,//

u)

IL&FS
Infrastructure
Debt Fund Series

As at
March 31,

2023



(28) Segmetrt rcporting
The Mutual fund is engaged in business of investing amounts receivd from investors as

unit capital, in accordance with their investment objectives to generate retums. The
lnvesgnent objective of the scheme is to generate income and capital appreciation by
investing primarily in infrdstructure debt, Since there is only one business s€gment and no
geographical segments, the segmental reporting disclosures as required by Acmunting
Standard - l7 "Segment Reporting" have not been made.

(29) Previous year figures have been regrouped and / or rearranged wherever nec€ssary, to
correspond to figures ofthe cunent year

Signature to Notes to Accounts

For IL&FS Infra Asset Management Limited

6l,,hlL
Nand Kishore
Chairman
DIN: 08267502

S. M. Chitale
Partner
M. No.l I1383

\V
Sachilr Borkar
Fund\Lanager

For Mukund. M. Chitale & Co.
Chartered Accountanls
Firm Reg. No. 106655W

Datei 24th Jruly 2024
Place: Mumbai

{t+zatb,*

r.l'tl"l<nu<ys,Z
NEElEslrtremEE--
CEO

Director
DIN:08766:138

Manoj Borkar
Director
DIN:00060698

MUMBAI

{\. CH/

For tL&FS Trustee Limited

e9-
Aroop Sircar
Director
DIN: 05309663
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Report on the Financial Statements

Name of Schemes
IL&FS lnfrastructure Debt Fund Series 2A

Opinion
we have audited the accompanying financial statements of the following schemes of IL&FS
Mutual Fund (lDF) - closed ended Debt schemes (the "schemes"fwhich comprise the
Balance sheet as at March 31,2024, the Revenue Account and the cash Flow statement for
the year then ended and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

ln our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid financial statements of the schemes mentioned above give a true and fair view
in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted ln lndia, including the
accounting policies and slandards specified in the Ninth schedule to the SecuritieJ and
Exchange Board of lndia (Mutual Funds) Regulations, 1996, as amended ( the ,,SEBI

Regulations") :

a) ln the case ofthe Balance sheet, ofthe state of affairs ofthe schemes as aluarch 31,2024
b) ln the case of the Reven ue Account, of the surplus for the year ended on that date and
c) ln the case of the cash Flow statement, of the cash flows for the year ended on that date.

lL&FS lnfrastructure Debt Fund Series 28
L& FS nfrastruI uct re De tb UF dn 2rres t

To the Board of Directors of IL&FS AMC Trustee Limited

2. Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing (sAs) issued by the rnstitute of chartered Accountants of lndia (,lcAl,). our
responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Financial statements section of our report. we are independent of the
Schemes in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by lCAl together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit oflhe financial statements, and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and lhe Code of Ethics.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements.

3. Key Audit Matters
Key audit matters are those matlers that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in ourauditofthe financial slatements ofthe current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit ofthe financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have
determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our
report.

0-,N'/
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Key Audit Matters Auditors Response

Existence and Valu on of inves tments

The investments held by the schemes as on
March 3'l , 2024, mainly comprised of Debt
instruments.
There is a risk of existence of investments
and that the fair value of investmenls is not
determined appropriately.
Accordingly, the existence and valuation of
investments is considered as a key audit
matter.

CHARTERED
ACCOUNTANTS

4

We performed the following audil procedures:. Assessed the design and implementation
of controls over existence and valuation of
investments.. Tested the controls set up by Management
on sample basis on exislence and
valuation of lnvestments.. Traced, the quantity held as per books with
the confirmation provided by Custodian as
of year end.. Tested the valuation of investments on
sample basis as per the investment
valuation policy approved by the Trustees
and with the sEBl Re ulations

lnformation other than financial statements and Auditor,s report thereon
The Board of Directors and Management of IL&FS AMC Trustee Limited (the Trustees) and
lL&FS lnfra Asset Management Limited (the "AMc") are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the Truslee's Report but does not
include the financial statements and our auditor's repo( thereon. The Trustee's Report is
expected to be made available to us afterthe date of this auditor,s report.

our opinion on the financial statemenls does nol cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion lhereon.

when we read the other information included in the above reports, if we conclude that there is
materaal misstatemenl therein, we are required to communicate the matter to those charged
with governance.

5. Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements
The Board of Directors and Management of IL&FS AMC Trustee Limited (the "Trustee") and
lL&FS lnfra Asset Management Limited (the "AMc") are responsible forthe preparation of these
flnancial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance,
and cash flows ofthe Schemes in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in
lndia, including the accounting policies standards specified in the Ninth Schedule to the SEBI
Regulations. This responsibility includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the SEBI Regulations, the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal controls relevant to the preparation and presenlation of the financial

ln connection with our audit of the financial stalements, our responsibility is lo read the other
information identilied above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the
other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit, or olhenruise appears to be materially misstated.

,",q-
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CHARTERED
A C C O U N TA N T S

statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

ln preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the scheme,s
ability to continue as a going concern, dasclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends t6
liquidate the schemes or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

5 Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statemenls as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with sAi will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or erior and are
consadered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users laken on the basis of these financiil statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with sAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

i) ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

Those charged with Governance are also responsible for overseeing the scheme,s financial
reporling process.

ii) Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose -of

expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of such controls.

iii) Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and lhe reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

iv) conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the sch;mes to
continue as a going concern. lf we conclude that a material uncerlainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or,
if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Schemes to cease to continue as a going concern.

v) Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and contenl ofthe financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whetherthe financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

9.*
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CHARTERED
accouNTAWEtommunicatewiththeManagemenl,amongothermatters,theprannedscopeandliming

of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficlencies in inlernal controlthat we identify during our audit.

We also provide to the Management with a statemenl that we have complied wilh relevantethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with lhJm all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our indepenoence, and whereapplicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine thosematters that were of most significance in the audiiof financial statements of the cunent year
and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor,s report uniesslaw or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or *h"n, ln extremely rarecircumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicaled in our reporl becausethe adverse c-onsequences of doing so would reasonably re expected to outrr"ign the public
interest benefits of such communication.

7. Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
i) As required by Regulation 55(4) and clause 5(iix2) of the Eteventh Schedule of the SEBIRegulations. we report that:

a) we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of ourknowledge and belief were necessary for lhe purpose of our audit;

b) The financial statements have been prepared in conformity with the accounting policies andstandards specified in the Ninth Schedule to the SEBI Regulations;

c) the Balance sheet, the Revenue Account and the cash Frow statement deart with by rhisreport are in agreement with the books of account of the Schemes.

ii) As required by the Eight Schedute of the SEBI Regutations, we report that:

a) ln our opinion, and on the basis of information and explanations given to us, the methodsused to varue non-traded securities as at March 31, 2024 are in aicordance wirh the sEBrReg!lations and other guidelines approved by the B'oard of Direcrors ofthe Trustee anJineAMC, and are fair and reasonable.

For Mukund M. Chitale & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No. 106655W

AiHr-
S. M. Chitale
Partner
M. No. 1 1'1383

UDIN: 24 1'l'l 383BKBGRT2437
Place: Mumbai
Date: July 24,2024



'B

3d5
3a:

t
J

i
j

9*t
{qI

gi*
Ei-e
2=

{d

t
3Eil.aa5

n 8;i

Eip3ii
=:

Ki
r,
j

i

z

q6t
assi
:'

I
Fi

CD

f,

zI

I

\

i

-g
(D

E
\

v
d'I

1

t!
i3:ri
,E=

I
5

I
I!
!

!
AE

! I
l\I!II

i

a

E

,
tt
EI

IE

c!

,i

isE

Iig

E

3

ii
:>
a!

ta
a

:>

i6

t9

ri
I !E
t7z

t

i

!

a

,'
I

I
B

t!
a!E
9tq

I

t!
IE

c



i

^t
il
lc.rt
?arl

T

I
I

:
Et

I

a

:
TCTXiEii i

1
\ ii

?,

,-
!ctl

#,I iEti

a
aa
<B
tr>

€

Ez

,E
9a

I
!

i.

i.:
Eaa
!;

E ! -ri
1.5: E

EsSq ":JE(D:Ei

)\

ri#
I

1\
gr"

\
*
s
2
i3

€

7

a

e

E

E

,:

I

:
I

'EI
EI

Bi

c!

co

l

c$

2

I-

II
s:i-

7

x;:lna
{:

i
a

l-

.!!

EAi
Ei5

q

t

q

E

*

!!

?*8e
t 7!

,i :

!i
!t

i
-,

sA
7|
9a

ir
E!

t.

I

t =
:iH.Ei9

I

1

a

:!

3fl

a&

t
!
:It

tIiIlt !it ; Ill-!"9.
:tii5t3,IEI!i5!.'
tE!HIi l

t
et

c
!
I
t

I
!

.a!
ai

I E!6=
r; I ir6JrI

i

I

aI

I

t

I

!

:

:
!

I

8aa



t

I

{

.3

I

r
JI

'Eii
8:E Iq I

I,
{
;r

{:

i>
3i

a

a4
:>

#-
i ! ,E

a

l>

a

?tzi6E

I

I'r! 3
2!zrad

iE
,E7

$\*I,'dii
.!{

E

d
.{
rl
{
s?

c
\3.

$+

-1\
-g
$

E

?
:
E

?

E
T

!

ei
9

3I

3

E!!€tIE
:fE
II!

o. rst

Ir cu3
I
i :a

I
:

I
s

E:

t::
s 2:

2

a

T

B

r9
c8

e
9:'

t

i3

EZ

i8a
l z

2

:1

EZ

ec8 3

=!

c
!

!!

!.:

IB
E:

!
E

e

!

E

3

!i
lr!x ;l!

r- Il!:
ii i EE!lr
iE;i:!lltf
EEEE !E :
i

I EEI ali la! El

EE IIiI I}
ii ir
IIEig

!;iii3
rg

r l-q

I



NOTES FORMINC PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(l) Background

II&FS Mutual Fund (lDF) ('the Fund') has been constituted as a Trust in accordance

with the provisions of the Indian Trusts Act, lE82 with lt&FS Financial Services

Limited ("IFIN") as the Sponsor, lt&FS Infra Asset Management Limited as the

lnvesfnent Manager and II,&FS AMC Trustee Limited as the Trustee. The Trust Deed

has been registered under the lndian Registration Act, l90E on January 21,2013 and

amended through Deed of amendment on September 5, 2013. The InYestnent
Management Agreement between I[.&FS Infra Asset Management Limited (the AMC),
It&FS AMC Trustee Limited (the Trustee) and the trust was executed on lanuary 21,
2013 and amended on September 5, 2013. The Fund has been registered wilh SEBI on

February 1,2013 under Registration Code MF/072l13/02. With effect from January l,
2017, sponsor of the Fund was changed fiom IFN to IL&FS Investment Manage6
Limited ("llML"), consequently Trust Deed and lnvestment Management Agreement
were amended on January 16, 2017.

IL&FS Infrastructure Debt Fund Series 24,28 and 2C is a closed ended Scheme for 5

Years, 8 Years and 12 Years resp€ctively. Tenure to be calculated from the lime the
units become fully paid. The scheme was launched on March 3,2014 and units were

allotted on April 17, 2015 being first draw down ofthe commitments. Units are having
face value ofl 1,000,000 and partly paid-up as on March 31, 2023 and as on March 3l,
2024.

The Investrnent objective of the scheme is to generate income and capital appreciation
by investing primarily in infrastructure debt instruments as permifted by SEBI fiom
time to time.

(2) Significantaccountirgpolicies

The financial statements are prepared and presented under the historical cost
convention, as modified for investments which are stated at fair value at the
balance sheet date, on accrual basis of accounting and in accordance with the
accounting policies and standards specified in the Ninth Schedule of the
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Mutual Funds) SEBI Regulations,
1996 as amended (the "SEBI Regulations").

b) Use ofcstimates

The preparation of financial statemen6 in conformity with Cenerally Accepted
Accounting Principles (GAAP), which requires Management to make
judgmens, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting
policies and reported amounts ofassets, liabilities, income and expenses and the

disclosure of contingent liabilities on the date of lhe financial statements.

Actual results could differ from those estimates. Estimates and underlying
assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis.

Any revision to accounling estimates is recognized prospectively in current and

future periods.

c) Investme[ts

(i) Basis ofaccounting

Transactions for purchase and sale of investments are recorded on trade date

The cost of investments includes all costs incurred

investments and incidental to acquisition of investmen
@

D
_/o,I

m g the

O)

,

a) Basis ofpreparation offinancial statements
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discount on privately placed investments is reduced from the cost of such
investments.

Broken period interest paid/received is not included in the cost ofpurchase of
invesunents.

(ii) Valuation

The valuation of investment is based on the guiding principles of fair
valuation.

Where it is observed that Valuation methodolosi mentioned below, does
not lead to fair valuation of securities, Valuation Committee may on a
prospective basis deviate from the defined methodology and adopt such
altemate procedures / methods in conformance with the guiding principles
of fair valuation in good faith !o arrive at the true and fair estimation of the
realizable value of the security. The rationale for any such deviations is
recorded in writing and placed before the Board of Directors of the AMC
and the Trustee.

Valuation of Security; is anived as p€r the policy; are applied coosistently
across the portfolios. In other words; any particular security is valued on
the same basis across all rhe ponfolios and it cannot have different basis for
valuation on a particular day.

VALUATION METHODOLOCIES

Debt, Money Market and related securities - All debt, money market and
related securities. Infrastructurc Debt Fund (lDF) is a close ended fund, it
does not do marked-to-market valuation ofsecurities and all its investments
are held to maturity. It also does not trade its investments, There is no risk
matrix available for the kind ofinvestment that IDF invests in.

In view of above and the illiquid nature of infrastructure debt securities,
having minimal or no secondary market, the valuation of infrastructure debt
securities is done on a current effective yield basis (face value of security
plus interest accrued).

Considering that IDF does not trade its investments, all money market
instruments and other debt securities are valued on a current effective yield
basis (face value ofsecurity plus interest accrued).

Valustion of morey market and debt securities which are rated below
investmetrt grade:

IDF accounts for actual retum received on inyestments across ils schemes
in calculating the NAV, as long as the investments are standard and
continue to service their debt obligations.

There is no mark-down as long as servicing in respect ofthe investments is
being done on time.

ln case of mark-down ofinvestrnents, the same is undertaken in accordance
with regulations and specific details ofthe investment.

Investmeot iu Reverse Repo, Collateralized Borrowings and Lending
Obtigations (CBLO), Tri-Pany Repo (TREPS) and Bills Rediscounting
(BRDS):

Investment in Reverse Repo's, CBLO'S, TREPS and BRDS are valued at

g. CH/
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d) Revenue recognition
Interest income is recorded on a period proportionate basis

e) Expenses
The total expense ratio charged to scheme are within the limits prescribed under
Regulation 52 ofthe SEBI (Mutual Funds) SEBI Regulations, 1996.

All expenses identifiable with any panicular scheme are accounted on an accnral

basis. Expenses not identifiabl€ with any particular scheme are generally allocated
to the schemes in proportion to the numbcr of folios in the schemes or Averag€
Assets under management (AAUM), whichever is more appropriate.

Computation of Net Asset Value (NAV)
The NAv ofa scheme is computed separately for units issued under the various
options of the relevant plans of the IL&FS Infrastructure Debt Fund - Series
2A,28 and 2C, although the corresponding scheme's investments and other net
assets are managed as a single portfolio. For computing the NAV for various
plans/options, daily income eamed, including realized and unrealized gains or
losses in the value of investments and expenses incurred by the corresponding
scheme are allocated to the planvoptions in proportion to the net assets of each

plan/option.

lnvestor Education and Awareness Expenses
In compliance with SEBI Circular No. CIR/IMD/DF/2112012 dated September 13,

2012; the scheme has charged 0.02 % ofdaily net assets within the maximum limit
of total expense ratio as per the SEBI Regulations for investor education and

awareness initiatives. Pursuant to the letter dated January 8, 2016, issued by SEBI
to AMFI mandating all members to transfer 50% of the lnvestor Education and

Awareness fund balance as at March 31, 2016 and llom April l, 2016 onwards,
50% of the 0.02Yo of daily net assets aside by the Mutual fund, accordingly the
fund has transferred 50% of opening balance and additions for current year to
AMFI. The balance amounts are utilized towards investor education and awareness

initiative taksn by the Mutual Fund/AMC. Allocation for utilization is done in
different schemes based on the available balance in each scheme.

h)

2009, no entry load is charged

c)

Hc\\

z
I i

cc

M MAAI

Profit or toss on sale / redemption of investm€nts represents sale proceeds less

weighted average cost and is recognised on a trade date basis.

Transfer of Investrnents from one scheme to another scheme is made as per the
valuation policy in conformity with the investment objective of the scheme to
which such transfer has been made.

Inad
Pursuant to SEBI circular no SEBI/IMD/CIR NO .41168230/09 dated June 30,

())
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(10) lnvestmetrt M8nsgcment fees
The Scheme has paid or provided for investment management fees in accordanc€ with the
agreement with the AMC as amended from time to time and the Scheme Information
Documents read with Statement Additional Information. For the current period, the
Scheme has accrued Investment Management Fees at the rate of0.96% (excluding Service
Tax./GST) of average daily net assets (AAUM) as follows:

Amount in {

(l l) Trustee fe€s
The Schemes have paid or provided for trustee fees in accordance with the ageement with
the Trustee as amended from time to time and the Scheme Information Documents read
with Statement of Addilional Information. The Trustee is entitled to receive such fee up to
an annual rdte of0.0l7o ofthe scheme's average daily net assets.

(f2) Custodian fecs
HDFC Bank Limited provides custodian services to the schemes for which it receives
cusrodian fees as per the terms of lhe custodian Agreement.

(13) Other Expenses
Other expenses consist of intemal audit fees, bank charges and CCIL charges, etc

(14) Income/Expeoditure
The total income and expenditure as a percentage ofthe Average daily net assets:

For the Year ended March 31. 2024

For the Year cnded March 31.2023

(ls) IDcome tax
No income tax provision has been made as the schemes qualifo as a recognized Mutual
Fund under section l0 (23D) of the lncome-tax Act" 196l and the Direct Tax Laws
(Amendment) Ac! 19E8.

14clr.

I
I

Itrfrastructure
Debt Fund
Series

AAUM for
the Yerr

ended Mrrch
31,2024

Management
Fees

AAUM for
the Year

ended March
3t, 2023

Matrsgemert
Fees

Series 24 1,73,rE,04,534 1,66,25.32E 1.25.22.E6.673 1,202t,955
Series 2B 3,08,14,08,033 2,95,El,525 2,60,E3,41,35E 2.50,40,08'l

2,49,44,67,253 2,39.46,892 2,2s,46,28,906Series 2C 2,16,44,443

Series Expense Ratio
(Amount {) Yo to AAUM (Amount {) 9/o to AAUM

Series 24 - Direct Plan 63 ,62,52,399 2,03,10,615 l -l7o/o

60,t4,42;728 3,61,38,775 l.ll%o
Series 2C - Direct Plan 27,s8,62,24t I I .06vo 2,92,55,129 t.t1vo

Series Income Expclse Ratio
(Amount a) 70 to AAUM (Amount {) 7o to .{AUM

Series 2A - Direct Plan t8,l 1,92,966 t4.47yo r,46,86,826 t.t7yo
Series 28 Direct Plan 30,51,53,337 I1.70% 3,0s,90.642 t.t7%
Series 2C Direct Plan 22.52,27,622 9.99% 2,64,42,302 1.170/0

c,)
L!

\\ >I
./

\

Income

36.74%
Series 28 - Direct Plan 19.52%



(16) Nel Asset Value per urit
Amount {

(17) Portfolio holding as at year end are as follows

As rt Msrch 31,2024

Ltd and IL&FS Wind Energy Limited. Refer note 21 and 22

\ral

llc,)
-{t

Series Plan Face Vslue Paid-up
amount

As at March
3t,2024

As at M8rch
3l, 2023

Series 2A - Direct Plan Crowth 10,00,000 7,00,000 11,50,735.4305 7 ,85 ,732.892!
Series 28 - Direct Plan G.owth 10,00,000 7,00,000 L4,77,424.9236 L2,20,778.1209

Series 2C - Direct Plan 10,00,000 7,00,000 t4 ,40,37 8.57 56 t3 ,o4 ,379 .47 93
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Note 1. 100% provision has been made for lnvestment in Babcock Borsig Limited, Williamson Magor & Co.
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As at Msrch 31,2023

ItdfS ht.n..tur. D.b. Fo.d

xo. Coi dtL l).hr.r r Li!!d Or
,..orlr.d Si Err.it
Shm lih gndr Priv.. Lilild
Brbrnr rhd6 P4!' Ld
tu hr)!{. P@r CdrFn PBrc Ltn

Clo lt&r E Eat!, Sol6i hnt d

ti t

ll!11(
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r 1lt.,t

I I 004(

:0 2t(
2r tora
t ut!

l0t7t(

l,l lt.(

ii 73tt

t! 62y.

llt]t

No. Comnibh D.h..lla PnrEl, Pl...d

$'!n lifn $tu<run hva. LEi.d

Lxlal T li4alMtsl t!

2,,]9,61.'19

,r.67.{Jtto
]0l9.n
z6 t2r.
6l5tt
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12t%
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2U%
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29 t1.4

a

P .fl ln! rt l.d CdDoatih Lrd CP 08-Nd-21

lclcl s..urrB Lid cP o9od-21
1665./,

t2 80%

c lJl15.l1.0l3
Tord llEntunr (AlBlO rJl&.r1,018 2.64,15,E6.r71 1l&rlJ.r,r6s

9.08.1i.661 7.97.J1899

tJ2-r9J{,1.! :.1r^q,01tJr

Note 1. 100% provision has been made for lnvestment in Babcock Borsig Limited, Williamson Magor & Co

Ltd and llSFS Wind Energy Limited. Refer note 21 and 22.

(lE) Aggregate value ofpurchases and sales/ Redemption/Repaymeot
The aggregate value of investments purchased and sold (including redeemed) during the
year and expressed as percentage ofdaily average net assets are as follows:

For the Year ended March 31,202,1
IL&FS
lnfrastructure
Debt Fund
Series

For the Year ended March 31,2024

Aggregate value of
Purchases

(Amount t)

Percentage
ofAverage
Net Assets

Aggregate valuc of
Sales/Redemption

(Amount {)

Percentage
ofAverage
Net Assets

7,70,23,65,318 98.30% 1,38.00,00.000 79.690/0

Series 28 47.28% 34.360/0

Series 2C 60,25,85,846 24.160/0 4E,91,58,032 t9.6to/.

For the Year ended March 3l 202i
IL&FS
lnfrastructure
Debt Futrd
Series

For the Year ended March 31, 2023

Aggregate value of
Purchases

(Amount <)

PerceDtage
ofAverage
Net Assets

Aggregate value of
Sales/RedemptioIl

(Amount a)

Percentage
of Average
Net Assets

Series 2A 3,U,02,26,599 2,90.97 ,80.5',7 6 232.360/0

Series 2B 7,89,27,79,643 72.560/0 1.05.49.2t.093 40.44o/o

Series 2C 7,7 5 ,45,44 ,O37 1,10,E6.72,664 49.170/o

{\. Ct/

a

t-.

gc9

ffi

Series 2.4

7,45,68,49,5L2 r,05.88,05,967

290.69%

77.820/0



(19) Aggregste Fair value of Non-Traded lnvestments

The aggregate fair value of non-traded investments, valued in 'good faith' by
the Investment Manager on the basis of the valuation principles laid down by
SEBI ason 3ln March 2024: NIL (As on 31" March 2023:NIL)

ll The aggregate fair value of debt securities which have been valued at the price
other than the price given by the independent valualion agencies is as follows -

Amount

(20) lnvestment in the Securities of the Sponsors and Group Compatries of the
Sponsons
As on 31" March 2024 the Company has following investment in rhe securities ofgroup
companies ofthe Sponsors: NIL

As on 3l't March 2023 the Company has following investment in the securities ofgroup
companies ofthe Sponsors: NIL

(21) I[-&FS IDF invested in Zero Coupon NCDS amounting to Rs. 2,000 million issued
by IWEL in September 2016.

Pursuant to rating downgrade of IWEL, IL&FS IDF had sought pre-payment ofthe
NCDS from IWEL.

The entire value of NCDs of IL&FS Wind Energy Ltd (IWEL) had been provided
for, as a conservative valuation approach, as on 30 September 2021 as the NCDS had
fallen due.

After series of legal actions, IDF has received Rs. 252.63 crores against admined
claim of Rs. 254.66 crores. IDF has received -99% of its admitted claims in July
2023 as per interim distribution by IWEL ftom the proceeds received by IWEL from
the sale of its wind SPvs to ORIX. Accordingly, IDF has filed for withdrawal of its
case from Hon'ble Supreme Court given the substantial exlent of recovery made in
the account.

IDF has accounted the Income fiom amount recovered in its books of accounts to
the extent ofrecoyery amounting to Rs.69,34,65,1901-.

As per SEBI Regulations, IDF has made provision for the entire outstanding exposure
in IWEL. Summary of provisions made and recovery during the year ended March 31,
2024 & March3l,2023 is as given below:

March 3l,2024

,a

o'Cc

Percentage of
N€t Assets

Infrastructure
Debt Fund

As at March
31,2024

Percentage of
Net Assets

As at March
31. 2023

1,31,86,12,01E 99.45YoSeries 2A t,7E,t'7,73.670 9t.76vo

96.690/oSeries 2B 3,06.11,37,E7E 92.46yo 2,65,45,E6,472

96.630/oSeries 2C 2.39,93,49.769 91.90% 2.28.43.34.166

Closing
Provision

(D) = (A+B-C)
Series

Opening
Provision (A)

Provision made
during the year

(B)

Reverssl of
Provision made during

the year (C)
9,E5,61 02A 12,79,27,749 42,69,42,139

2B 26,08,08,036 26,02,07,339 6,00,697
14,5792C 63,30,292 63,15,713

Total 69,50,66,077 69J4,65,191
-. 

r6,00,EE6

MBAI fr'(D
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March 3l, 2023

Se ries
Opening

Provision (A)
Provision made
during thc yerr

(B)

Reversal of
Provision made

durins the year (C)

Closing Provision
(D) = (A+B-C)

2A 42.79,27,749 42,79,27;149
2B 26,08.08,036 26,08,08,036
2C 63,30,292 63,30,292

Total 69,50,66,077 69,50,66,077

As per SEBI Regulations, IDF has made provision for the entire outstanding
exposure in Babcock Borsig Limited. Summary of provisions made and recovery
during the year ended March 31, 2024 & March 31,2023 is as given below:

March 31. 2024

March 3l, 2023

The facility to Babcock Borsig Limited is secured through combination of listed
shares, land and other securities.

(b) lnvestment in Williamson Magor & Co. Limited has become NPA on December
01,2019 on account of non-payment of dues. IL&FS IDF has stopped accruing
intereston NCD facility w.e.f. October 01,2019 on conservatively basis.

As per SEBI Regulations, IDF has made provision for the entire outstanding
exposure in Williamson Magor & Co. Limited. Summary of provision made and
recovery during the year ended March 31, 2024 & March 31,

Series
Op€ning

Provision(A)
Provision made

during the yesr (B)
Reversalof

Provision made
during the year (C)

Closing Provision
(D) = (A+B-C)

2A 21 ,67 ;t2, t80 7,63,12,872 r4,04,59,308

2B 8,17,90,495 2,87.95.228 5,29,95,267

2C 5,10,76,212 l,79,83,070 3,30,93,142

Total 34,96,38,887 t2,30,91,170 22,65,47 ,7 t7

Opening
Provision(A)

Provision made
during the year

(B)

Reversal of
Provision made
during the year

(c)

Closing
Provision

(D) = (A+B-C)

2A 26,49,t6,174 4,81,43,994 2t,67,72,tE0

28 9.99,56;726 t.81.66.232 8. | 7.90.495

2C 6.24,21,308 r,13,45,096 5 ,t0 ,'7 6,2t2

Total 42,72,94,20E 1,76,55,322 34.96,38,887

s

M
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below:
2023 is as grven

(22) (a) Investment in Babcock Borsig Limited has become NPA on November 01,
2019. IDF has stopped accruing lnterest w.e.f. October 01, 2019 on conservative
basis.

(./)

Series

t!

*

r*,



Series
Opening
Provision

(A)

Provision made
duringthe
year (B)

Reversal of
Provision made
during the year

(c)

Closing
Provision

(D): (A+&C)

2A 44,58,302 13,20,527 31,37,77 5

2B 1,27,3E,00s 37.72.933 89,65,07 r

2C 63,69,002 | 8.86.,166 44,82,536

Total 2.35,6s,309 69,79,926 1,65,85Jt2

March 3l, 2024

March 3l, 2023

The facility to Williamson Magor & Co Limited is secured through combination of
listed shares, land and other securities

Summary ofprovisions (across investments) made during the year ended March 31,
2024 is given below:

Summary ofprovisions (across investments) made during the year ended March 31,
2023 is given below:

\s\
\Vz\--

Series
Open i ng
Provision

(A)

Provision made
duringthe
year (B)

Reversal of
Provision made
during thc year

(c)

Closing
Provision

(D) : (A+B-C)

2A 53,67,618 9.09,316 44,58,302

2B 1,53,36,052 25.98.O47 r,27,3E,005

2C 76,68,026 12,99,024 63,69.002

Total 2,E3,7r,69s 48,06,387 2Js,6sJ09

Series
Opening
Provision

(A)

Provision made
during the year
(B)

Reversal of
Provision made

durirg the year(C)

Closing
Provision

(D) : (A+B-C)

64,9t,58,231 50,45,75,538 14,45,E2,693

2B 35.53,36,535 29 ,27 ,7 5 ,500 6,25.6t,035
2C 6,37,75,507 2,6t,85,249 3,75,90,258

Total I,06,82,70213 82JsJ6,287 21,17 33,9E6

Reversal of
Provision made

during the year(C)

Closing
Provision

(D) = (A+B-c)
Series

Opening
Provision

(A)

Provision made
during the year
(B)

4,90,53,3 r0 64,91,5E,2312A 69.82.11,541
2,07,64,279 3s,53,36,5352B 37,61.00,814
t,26,44,1t9 6,37;t 5,5072C 7.64,19,626

106,82,7 0,27 3I15,07,31,981 8,24,6r,708Tolal

MUI,4BAI
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o



(23) SEBI Regulations speciry the percentage ofexpenses that can be charged to schemes of
mutual fund. Accordingly, IDF has not charged full Audit fee (Booked only upto
available limit rest bome by Asset Management Company) to the schemes. Also.
certain other opeBting expenses are charged to the schemes up to the permissible limit,
and any excess amounts have been bome by the Asset Management Company.

(2.1)

(2s)

There are no unpaid redemption and unclaimed dividend as at March 31, 2024

(a) There are no unit holders holding over 5070 ofthe net assets in the Schemes as at the
Balance Sheet dates.

(b) There are no amounts to be disclosed as required under SEBI Regulation 25 (l l) as

the Schemes have not made any inv€stments in the Companies or their Subsidiaries
which have invested more than 57o ofthe Net Assel Value for the year ended March 31,
2024 and Much 31,2023.

(26) Segment r€porting

The Mutual fund is engaged in business of investing amounts received ftom investors as

unit capital, in accordance with their investment objectives to generate retums. The
Investment objective of the scheme is to generate income and capital appreciation by
investing primarily in infiastructure debt. Since there is only one business segment and no
geographical segments, the segmental reporting disclosures as required by Acmunting
Standard - l7 "Segment Reporting" have not been made.

Q1) Related party disclosure and disclosure under regulation 25(8) of SEBI SEBI
Regulations

Related party disclosures pursuant to Accounting Standard l8 "Related Party
disclosure" issued by the ICAI and disclosure under regulation 25(E) of SEBI SEBI
Regulations are made as under:

a) The following are the related parties by control with whom transaction have been
entered during the period:

. Investment Manager: I[,&FS lnfra Asset Management Limited

. Trustee: IL&FS AMC Trustee Limited

. Sponsor: IL&FS lnvestment Managers Limited (lL&FS Financial
Services Limited till December 31, 2017)

b) Details oftransactions during the year:

c1

s

IL&FS
Infmstruclure
Debt Fund
Series

2A, 2B

Particulars For the
Year
ended
Msrch 31.
2024

For the
Year
ended
March 31,
2023

For the
Year
ended
March 31,
2024

For the
Year
ended
March 31,
2023

For the
Year
ended
March 31,
2021

Management
Fees

1,66,2s,328 t,20 2t,955 2.95.81,525 2,s0.40,084 2,39,46.892 2,t6,44,443

Trusteeship Fees I,73,1E6 1,25,232 3,0E,r 51 2,60,E39 2,49,455 2,25,468

[4 N'IBAI

ACc

2C

For the
Year
ended
March 31,
2023



c) Year-endPayables/Receivables:

(2t) Details ofcontingent Liabilitiev Investment Commitment are as follows:

Details March 31,
2024

March 31,
2023

Underwriting Commitment Nit Nil
Uncatled liability on partly paid-up shares Nil Nil
Investment Commitment Nit Nit

tThe allocation bet'ween different schemes ofthe mutual fund will be done by the fund
manager

(29) Previous year's figures have been regrouped and /or rearranged wherever necessary, to
correspond to figures ofcurrent year.

Signatur€ to Notes to Accounts

For Mukund. M. Chitale & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No. 106655W

For IL&FS lnfra Asset Management Limited

61,'hlr-
S. M. Chitale
Partner
M. No.l I1383

..) 
-.

. N)"

\ f,r*d Ki"ho."
Chairman
DIN: 0E267502

Manoj Borkar
Director
DN:00060698

Aroop

\\,V
Sachinbo'rkar
Fund lt$nager

nt.J,l <,n&y'
fre-eleE6-ffi;Ei-

CEO

For IL&FS AMC Trustee Limited

t-*
Prabhudesai

IL&FS
I n frastructu re
Debt Fund S€ries

2A 2B 2C

Pa rticu lars As st
March 31,

2024

As ot
March

31, 2023

As at
March

31,2021

As at
March

3t,2023

As sa

M.r.h
31,2024

As at
March

31,2023

Payable
Management fees
payable
Trusteeship fees

Dayable

17,00,91E

t7,7tE

I I,64233

t2,tzE

28,96,700

30,17s

24,08,260

25,084

22,84,22E

23,795

20,74,0st

2l,605

MUMBAI
?

U. CHt

Date: 24'h July 2024
Place: Mumbai

Director
DIN:08766338

Director
DtN: 05309663

fuAvr"/--4
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Board of Direclors of IL&FS AMC Trustee Limited

Report on the Financial Statements

1. Opinion

Name of Schemes

we have audited the accompanying financial statements of the following schemes of IL&FS
Mutual Fund (lDF) - closed ended Debt schemes (the "schemes") which comprise the
Balance sheet as al March 31 , 2024, the Revenue Account and the cash Flow statement for
the year then ended and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

ln our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid tinancial statements of the schemes mentioned ibove give a true and-fair view in
conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in lndia, including the accounting
policies and standards specified in the Ninth schedule to the Securities and Exihange Board o-f
lndia (Mutual Funds) Regulations, 1996, as amended (the,,SEBI Regutations,,) :

a) ln the case of the Balance sheet, of the state of affairs of the schemes as at March 31 , 2024
b) ln the case of the Revenue Account, of the surplus for the year ended on thal date and
c) ln the case of the cash Flow statement, of the cash flows for the year ended on that date.

2. Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
(SAs) issued by the lnstitute of Chartered Accountants of lndia ('lCAl'). Our responsibilities under
those Standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities foi tne Audit ot tne
Financial Statements section of our repo(, We are independent of the Schemes in accordance
with the Code of Ethics issued by lCAl together with the ethical requirements that are relevant
to our audit ofthe financial statements, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the
financial statements.

3. Key Audit Matters
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most signiticance
in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were add'ressed in
the context of our audit ofthe financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon,
and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have determined the matters
described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report.

IL&FS lnfrastructure Debt Fund Series 3B

f'l-

2nd Floo( Kapur House,
Paranjape B Scheme
Road No.1 , Vile Parle (E),

Mumbai 400057
r: 91 22 2663 3500
www.mmchrtale com
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Key Audit Matters Auditors Res nse
Existence and Valuation of investments

The investments held by the schemes as on
March 31 , 2024, mainly comprised of Debt
instruments.
There is a risk of existence of investments
and that the fair value of investments is not
determined appropriately.
Accordingly the exislence and valuation of
investments is considered as a key audit
matter.

We performed the following audit procedures :. Assessed the design and implementation
of controls over existence and valualion of
investments.. Tested the controls set up by Management
on sample basis on existence and
valuation of lnvestments.. Traced, the quantity held as per books with
the confirmation provided by Custodian as
of year end.. Tested the valuation of investments on
sample basis as per the investment
valuation policy approved by the Trustees
and with the SEBI Requlations.

5. Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements
The Board of Directors and Management of lL&FS AMc rrustee Limited (the "Trustee") and
lL&FS lnfra Asset Management Limited (the "AMC") are responsible for the preparation of ihese
financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance,
and cash flows of the Schemes in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in
lndia, including the accounting policies standards specified in tne tlinth Schedule to the SEBI
Regulations. This responsibility includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the sEBl Regulations, the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal controls relevant to the preparation and presentation of the linancial
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

W

4. lnformation other than financial statements and Auditor,s report thereon
The Board of Directors and Management of IL&FS AMC Trustee Limited (the Trustees) and
lL&FS lnfra Asset Management Limited (the "AMC") are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the Trustee,s Report but does not
include the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon. The Trustee,s Report is
expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditor,s report.

our opinion on the financial statemenls does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

ln connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the
other information is materially inconsistent with the financial stat6ments or our knowledge
obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

when we read the other information included in the above reports, if we conclude that there is
material misstatement therein, we are required to communicate the matter to those charged with
governance.



MUKUND
M. CHITALE
& co.

CH
AC

ARTERED
COUNTANTS

ln preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Scheme's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate
the Schemes or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Charged with Governance are also responsible for overseeing the Scheme's tinancial
reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with sAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with sAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

i) ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulling from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, orlhe override
of internal control.

ii) Obtain an understanding of internal financial conlrols relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of such controls.

iii) Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimales and related disclosures made by management.

iv) Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the schemes to
continue as a going concern. lf we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial stateme;ts or.
if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Schemes to cease to continue as a going concern.

v) Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the tinancial statements, including
lhe disclosures, and whether the financial stalements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate wilh the Management, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

w
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We also provide to the Management with a slatement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships anJ otner
matters that may reasonabry be thought to bear on our independence, and where appricabre,
related safeguards,

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit oifinancial itatements of the current year and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unleis lawor regulation precrudes public discrosure about the mafler or when, in extremery rare
circumstances' we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing.so wourd reasonabry be expected to outweiin the pubric
interest benef its of such communication.

7. Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
i) As required by Regulation 55(4) and clause 5(iix2) of the Eleventh Schedule of the SEB|

Regulations, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit;

b) The financial statements have been prepared in conformity with the accounting policies and
standards specified in the Ninth Schedule to the SEBI Regulations;

c) the Balance sheet, the Revenue Account and the cash Frow statement deart with by this
report are in agreement with the books of account of the Schemes.

ii) As required by the Eight Schedule of the SEBI Regulations, we report that:

a) ln our opinion, and on the basis of information and expranations given to us, the methods
used to varue non-traded securities as at March 91, 2d24 are in aicordance with the sEBr
Reg^ulations and other guidelines approved by the Board of Directors of the Trustee and theAMC, and are fair and reasonable.

For Mukund M. Chitale & Co
Chartered Accountanls
Firm Regn. No. 106655W

Oi'tlL-
S. M. Chitale
Partner
M. No. 1 1 1383

UDIN: 241 1 1383BKBGRU4O68

Place: Mumbai
Date: July 24, 2024
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NOTES FORMINC PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(l) Bsckground

IL&FS Mutual Fund (tDF) ('the Fund') has been conslituted as a Trust in accordance with
the provisions of the Indian Trusts Ac! I EE2 with IL&FS Financial Services Limited
("IFIN") as the Sponsor, IL&FS Infra Asset Management Limited as ihe lnvestment
Manager and II^&FS AMC Trustee Limited as the Trustee. The Trust Deed has been
registered under the Indian Registration Act, l90E on January 21, 2013 and amended
lhrough Deed of amendment on September 5, 2013. The lnvestmenl Management
Agreement between IL&FS lnfra Asset Management Limited (the AMC), IL&FS AMC
Trustee Limited (the Trusree) and fie rrusr was executed on January 21,2013 and amended

on September 5,2013. The Fund has been registered with SEBI on February 1,2013 under
Registration Ccde MFl072ll3/02. With effect from January l, 2017, sponsor of the Fund
'\,',/as changed from IFN to IL&FS lnvestment Managers Limited ("llML"), consequently
Trust Deed and Investrnent Management Agr€€ment were amended on January 16, 2017.

[L&FS Infrastructure Debt Fund Series 34 is a closed ended Scheme for 5 Years. The
scheme was launched in January, 20lE and units were allotted on February 01,2018.
Series 34. is matured on 3lr January 2023 and redemption value is paid in full to the
investors

IL&FS Infrastructure Debt Fund Series 38 is a closed ended Scheme for 7 Years. The
scheme was launched in April,20l8 and units were alloued on May 07, 2018. Units are
having face value of{ t0,00,000 and are fully paid-up. The units are listed on the National
Stock Exchange oflndia on May I l,20lE.

The Investnent objective of the scheme is to generate income and capital appreciation by
investing primaily in infrastructure debt instruments as permitted by SEBI from time to
time.

(2) Sigrificantaccountingpolicies

a) Bssis of preparation of financial statements

The financial statements are prepared and presented under the historical cost
convention, as modified for investments which are stated at fair value at the
balance sheet date, on accrual basis of accounting and in accordance with the
accounting policies and standards specified in the Ninth Schedule of the Securities
and Exchange Board of lndia (Mutual Funds) SEBI Regulations, 1996 as amended
(the "SEBI Regulations").

b) Use of estimates

The preparation of financial stalements in conformity with Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles (GAAP), which requires Management to make judgm€nts,

estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and

reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses and the disclosure of
contingent liabilities on the date of the financial statements. Actual results could
differ from those esrimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on

an ongoing basis.

Any revision to accounting cstimates is recognized prospectively in cunent and

future periods.

c) Itrvestmetrts
(i) Basis ofaccounting
. Transactions for purchase and sale of inyestments are recorded on trade date. The

cost of investments includes all costs incur.ed in acquiring the investments and

incidental to acquisition of investments. Ariy fiont end-discount on privately

O)
LL

vM MBAI
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placed investmens is reduced fiom the cost ofsuch i



Broken period interest paid/received is not included in the cost of purchase of
investments

(ii) valuation
. The valuation of investment is based on the guiding principles of fair

valuation.

o Where it is observed that valuation methodologi mentioned below, does not
lead to fair valuation ofsecurities, Valuation Committee may on a prospective
basis deviate from the defined methodologr and adopt such altemate
procedures / methods in conformance with the guiding principles of fair
valuation in good faith !o arrive at the true and fair estimation ofthe realizable
value of the security. The rationale for any such deviations is recorded in
writing and placed before the Board of Directors ofthe AMC and the Trustee.

. Valuation of the Security; anived as per the policy; shall be applied
consistently across the portfolios. In other words; any particular security is

valued at same basis across all the portfolios and it cannot have different base

for Yaluation on a particular day.

VALUATION METHODOLOC IES

. Debt, Money Markei and related securities - All debt, money market and
related securities. lnfrastructure Debt Fund (lDF) is a close ended fund, it does
not do marked-to-market valuation ofsecurities and all its investsneots are held
to maturity. [t also does not trade its inyestments. There is no risk matrix
available for the kind of investment that IDF invests in.

ln view of above and the illiquid nature of infrastructure debt securities,
having minimal or no secondary market, the valuation of infrastructure debr
securities is done on a current effective yield basis (face value ofsecurity plus
interest acqued).

Considering that IDF does not lrade its investments, all money market
instruments and other debt securities are valued on a current effective yield
basis (face value ofsecurity plus interest accrued).

. Vsluatiotr of money msrket and debt securitics which are rated below
itrvestDent grade:

IDF accounts for actual retum received on inyestments across its schemes in
calculating the NAV, as long as the investments are standard and contioue to
service their debt obligations.

There is no mark-down as long as servicing in respect of the investments is
being done on time.

ln case of mark-down of investments, the same is undertaken in accordance
with regulations and specific details ofthe investment.

Itrvestment in Reverse Repo, Collater8lized Borrowings and Lending
Obligatiotrs (CBLO), Tri-Party Repo (TREPS) and Bills Rediscounting
(BRDS):

Investment in Reverse Repo's, CBLO's, TREPS and BRDS are valued at cost
plus accrued interest.

Revenue rec.ognition

Interes income is recorded on a period proportionate basis.

Profit or loss oo sale / redemption of investments represents sale proceeds less

q
L!MBAI
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weighted average cost and is recogn ised on a trade date basis.
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Transfer of Investments from one scheme to another scheme is made as per the
valuation policy in conformity with the investment objective of the scheme to which
such transfer has been made.

e) Expenses

The total expense ratio charged to scheme are within the limits prescribed under
Regulation 52 of the SEBI (Mutual Funds) SEBI Regulations, 1996.

All expenses identifiable with any particular scheme are accounted on an accrual
basis. Expenses not identifiable with any particular scheme are generally allocated to
the schemes in proponion to the number of folios in the schemes or Average Assets
under management (AAUM), whichever is more appropriate.

f) Computation ofNet Asset Vslue (NA!)

The NAV of a scheme is computed separately for units issued under the various
opiions of the relevant plans of the IL&FS Infrastructure Debt Fund Series 38,
although the coresponding scheme's investments and other net assets are managed as

a single portfolio. For computing the NAV for various planVoptions, daily income
eamed, including realized and unrealized gains or losses in the value of investments
and expenses incuned by the corresponding scheme are allocated to the planVoptions
in proportion to the ner assets of each plan/option.

Itrvestor f,dlcrtiotr and Awareness Expenses
In compliance with SEBI Circular No. CIR/IMD/DF/21l2012 dated September t3,
2012; the scheme has charged 0.02 % ofdaily net assets within the maximum limit of
total expense ratio as per the SEBI Regulations for investor education and awareness
initiatiyes. Pursuant to the letter dated January 8, 2016, issued by SEBI to AMFI
mandating all members ro transfer 5070 of the Investor Education and Awareness fund
balance as al March 31,2016 and from April l,2016 onwards,50olo of the 0.02Vo of
daily net assets aside by the Mutual fund, accordingly the fund has transferred 50% of
opening balance ard additions for cunent year ro AMFI. The balance amounts are
utilized towards inveslor education and awareness initiative taken by the Mutual
Fund/AMC. Allocation for utilization is done in different schemes based on the
available balance in each scheme.

h) Lad
Pursuant to SEBI circular no SEBI4MD/CIR NO .41168230/09 datd lune 30, 2009,
no entry load is charged.

c)

c$. al
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3 t nil Crpitrl

S.ri.r lBlL&m Muturl Fund (lDF)
As rt Mrrch 31.202.1 As .t M.rch 31, 2023

t nits \os. Amount a
Prrticuhrs

r.47.00,00,000

t! 00 fil m0

1.47,00.00,000

5 00 00 000

r.47.00.00.000 1.470.00

t,470.00

60 00

I ,47.00.00.000

1,470.00

60 00

t.470 00

l.{70.00 t.17.00.00.000 1,.t70.00 1.17,00,00.000

6.00,00,00060 00 6.00.00.000

60.00 6,00.00,000 60.00 6.00.00.000

r.sJ.00.00.000 1.530.00 1.53,00,00.000l-530.00

loitirl Crpit l lilu.d rtrd !ub.crib.d:
Unils of a 10,00,000

Direct Plan - Growth
R.gular Plan - Growth
Dir€ct Plan - Dividcnd

P.id-Upr
Dircct Plan - Growth Facc vall& { 10,00,000

Units at beginning of*E p6iod
Mor.y called during fE pcriod

Units Rcd€€rned durinS thc pcriod

Units outstanding at €rd of th€ p.riod

R€ular Plan - Grolfth Facc valtrc I 10,00,000

Units at beginnin8 of thc pcriod

Morrcy called durinS thc p€riod

Uni6 outsbnding at end of the pcriod

Units outstanding at end of the pariod

Direct Plan - Dividend Face Value a 10.00.000

Units at bcginning of the period

Money called during the penod

Units ou6tanding at cnd of the p€nod

Units outstanding at end of the penod

I nit Crpitrl rt th..nd ofth. p.riod
E--

MBAI
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IL&FS Mutual Fund (IDF) Series 3B

Particulars As at March 31, 2023 As al March 31,2023

Revenue Reserve
At the beginning of the period

Transferred to Revenue account
Surplus transferred from Revenue account

Premiun paid on redemption

s4,98,32,747
(54,98,32,747)
89,79,68,493

39,41,34,752
(39,41,34,7s2)
s4,98,32,747

At the end of the vear 89,79,68,.193 34,9832,747

4 Reserves and surplus
Amount <

Amount {

* The reserves and surplus are allocated betwe€n growth and dividend option in proportion ofthe

number ofunits outstanding against each option.

ual A

o)
l,! oli( ,/

Reserves and surplus for each option:-

Direct Plan - GroMh
Direct Plan - Dividend
Regular Plan - Growth

86,27,54,042
3,52,14,451

s2,82,70,678
2,15,62,069

Total 89,79,68,493 51,98J2,747

MBAI

Acc
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5 Current liabilities and

+ Other payable includes audit fees, internal audit fees, custody fees etc for previous year.

Amount {
Series 38IL&FS Mutual Fund (IDF)

As at March 31,
2023

As at March 31,
2024Particulars

18,24,85 I

19,009

9,50,500

33,70,5s2
l,86,041

2t,25,309
22,139

12,59,940

2,09.305

Creditors for
-lnvestment Management fee payable

-Trustee fee payable

-Other payable*

Income received in advance

Statutory dues
63,50,95336,16,693Total

M MBAI

$. CH/
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6
Amount (

IL&FS Mutual Fund (lDF) Series JB
As st Nlarch Jl. 202.1 As st March 31. 2023

Particulars Cost Ilarket / [air Yaluc Cost Market / Frir
Valu.

Non Convertible Debentures Listed On
RecoSnised Stock Exchangp

Non Convertible Dcbentures-Privately Placcd

Money Market Instruments

79,51,48,531

1,42.15.58,539

19.62,50.452

1,42,04,51,4t6

58,51,08.493

1,3 t,91,60,759

58,51.08,493

1,31,91,60,759

'fotal 2.21.61.07.010 2.21.67.01.868 r.90.12.69.252 l.m.{2.69.252

Notc!:.
I . Investments ale stared inclusive of interest accrued but not due
2. R€fer Note I 7 - For d€tails of lnvestments {.4H,

BAI
C.)



7 Olher Currrnt essals

* Cenain bank accounts ofthe Scheme are held in lhe name ofth€ Fund
** Triparty repo is registered in lhe name ofthe Fund.

8 Interest lncome

9 Othcr lncome

Amount I
lL&FS Uutu.l Fund (lDF) Series 3B
Partiaulrrs .{s et llrrch 31.

1n2t
As it Mrrch 31,

202i
Bsiancrs with a banli in curent account. (Rcfq Note

2(h))
- Curent Accounts
- IEAP Accounrs
- Tripany Repo Accounts

Trip8rty Rcpo'r
Triparty REPO ma4in

3E.l r,710
l1.0s,899

20,81,12,229

12,53,460

3.9 r,02,688
8,80,670

l4.l1,07,915
8r3,t 55

Totrl 21.{8.83.318 l8.l9.l{..llt

Amount I
IL&FS llluturl Fund (IDF) Series 3B
Prrticulers For the Yerr

cndcd ]ltrrch 31,

2021

For the Year
ended lerch ll.

2023
On lnvestment in Non Convertible D€bentur€s

on Cenificate of Deposils

On Tripan].- Repo Margin
On Rev€Ee ReDo/friparty Repo

18.60,t 6,741

9E,l4t
2,16,63,483

13,61,333t2
61.54,378
1,07,313

2,26,6E,748

Total 21J7,78J6s l6-56,61,8.1 I

Amount a

lL&FS Uutusl Fund (lDF) Series 38
Prrtic0lers For thc t'err

endcd [lrrch 31.
2021

For th€ Ycar
cnded Mrrch 31,

2023
Misc Income 32.24,577 1,34,07,969
Total 32.21.571 1J.t,07,969

MBAI
?
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(10) lnvestment Matragement fees

The Schemes have paid or provided for investment management fees in accordance with the
agreement with the AMC as amended &om time to time and the Scheme Information
Documents read with Statement Additional Information. For the current period, the Schemes

have accrued lnvestment Management Fees at the rate of 0.967o (excluding GST) for Direct
Plan (Crowth & Dividend Payout) and 0.96% (excluding GST) for Regular Plan (Growth) of
average daily net ass€ts (AAUM) as follows:

Amounl in {

(l l) Trustc6hip fces
The schemes have paid or provided for tustee fees in accordance with the agreement with the

Trustee as amended from time to time and the Scheme lnformation Documents read with
Statement of Additional Information. The Trustee is entitled to teceive such fee up to an

annual rate of0.0l70 ofure scheme's average daily net assets.

02) Cwtodirr fees
HDFC Bank Limited providEs custodian services to the schemes for which it receives

custodian fees as per the terms ofthe custodian agreement.

(13) Other Expenses
Other expenses consist of intemal audit fees, bank charges and CCIL charges, SEBI charges,

etc.

(14) Income/Expetrditurc
The total income and expenditure as a percentage of lhe Average daily net assets are as

follows:

For the year ended March 31, 2024

lIrfrastructure
Debt Fund

I ncome Erpense Ratio

Amount { o% to AAUM Amount < 7o to AAUM

Series 3B 37,48,90.543 16.430/o 2.67,54.797 t.t1yo

Income Expense Ratio

Amount { 7. to AAUM Amount < 7" to AAUM
Series 3B 17.90.7 t.810 8.990/0 2.33.73.815 t.l1vo

(15) Itrcom€ tax
No income tax provision has been made as the schemes qualifi as a recognized Mutual Fund
under ssction l0 (23D) of the lncome-tax Act, 196l and the Direct Tax Laws (Amendment)
Acl 198E.

Amount

b

AAUM for the
Year eoded
March 31,

2023

Management
Fees for the
Yesr ended
March 31,

2023

AAUM for the
Year ended

March 31, 202,1

Management
Fees for the
Yerr ended
March 31,

2024

lnfrastructure
Debt Fund
Series

2,19.00,236 | ,99,29,91,285 t,91,32,722Series 3B 2.28.12.7 3 .8 t2

lnfrastructure Debt
Fund

Plan Face Value As at March 31,
2024

As at March 31,
2023

Growth 10.00.000 15,86,907.5169 13,59,367.8125Series 3B- Direct
Dividend 10,00,000 Ls,86,9O7fr{G x3,s9,367.8007

l\,4 MBAI
Z

sr

ACc

For the year ended March 31, 2023

Itrfrastructure
Debt Fund

(16) Net Asset Value per unit

7(

(a

1



Mrn?,1
IL&IS ll.Er.rrctEr- DGDI fEld Scricr 38
Pr.rticul-rrr kir vrlu:

(Aaourr ?)
t5 to N.t Iti to

Cractc:r
Totd

Non Cavrrdblc Ihbratus
Liir.d O! R..orr.i,Gd. Srock
h&rrt'u:tu.r+ Scctgr
K.nchaniunga Po,rer Comprhy Pvt Ltd
lnos Wind Limited
Em.mi Frank Flosr Limited
Bhil.ngana Hydro Powe. Limired
Btuti E.Ir...cr LiE{t d
Tata Flcrlty and lnfrrstructur. Limited

2.50.OO.OOO
25.OO.OO.OOO

a.oo.oo.ooo
a.oo.oo.ooo
15,73,15.320
20.33.35.132

r -o3
to3(r,i
329.4
32.v4
6seA
837?5

3.t44
3t .11t A
lo.()5.r
lo.(}5%
19"439,{
25.54)1

A vr.52,945' t!.'r99L loo.(rctt
N6 rcoir.rtiDlc Ihbcaturcc
Privrtcly Phcc{
hfi.rEEctrrf S.Gtc
Resco Globel \Jind Ser,rices Pvt Ltd
OBL lnfrateeh Private Lrd
Utkarsh Treding & Holdings L
Shram lnfra ln,rest Pvt Ltd
Emaml Frank Boss Limited

la-,{- c
57-89-59-O36

r,EOollto

' 
1 Tilr!!" 9.r+52

.oo(L
,ooo
.320

10-00-oo-ooo

23.a5.4
20.59'/.
124%
8.71
4.t2,1

I
I

40.76.
35 -2*)t
2-lt.r

l4,a9.l
7.U.

B I,41t}4.5t.416 5a.s,Ota l(xr.(xll(
Totrl hvBtulEtt (A+B) agr$'r,at,Be 91.3{}!a
Net Cllr€at Ar€t! 2I,t:"66,525 A-70rA

a4:,?9,68,493 loo.fi,re

(17) Portfolio holding as at year end are as follows:

As 8t March 31, 2024

Note l. l009/o provision has been made fo. Investment in IL&FS Wind Energy Limited in Scheme 38. Refer
note no. 2l and 22.

1i. cHi

(r) 'e

7t

I
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As at March 31.2023

Mar-23
lL&FS lnfraslr[cture Debt Fund Series 3B
Particulsrs Fair velue

(Amount O
70 to Net Assets 7o to Category

Total

Non Convertible D€benturcs Listed On
Recognised Stock Exchange
lnfrrstructure Sector
KarEhanjunga Power Company Private Ud
lnox Wind Limited

Bhilangana Hydro Power trd
Emafti Frank Ross Limited

TIE Bombay Burmah TradirE Corporation Ltd

2,50,00,000

25,00,00,000

8,00,00,000

8,00,00,000

15,01,08,493

1.20o/o

12.02o/o

3.85o/o

3.85o/o

7.22o/o

4.270/o

42.73Yo

13.67%

t3.67%
25.65%

58,51,08,493 28.t jv" 100.00vo

Non Convertible Debcntures Privately
Placed
Infrastructure Sector
AMRI Hospitals tld
Shrem Infra Structure Privale Limited
Kanchanjunga Power Company Private L,td

Ernami Frank Ross Limited

Clean Max En Ener$i Solution Private hd
Utkarsh Trading & Holdings Ltd

DBL Infratech Private Lld

r3,64,88,601

37 ,76,72.t58
2,50,00,000

10,00,00,000

15,00,00,000

3,00,00,000

s0,00,00,000

6.560/o

l8.l60/o

1.20o/o

4.81o/o

7 .?10/o

1.44%

24.04%

10.35%

28.630/.

t.90%
7.58%

n.37%
2.27%

37.90%

B 1.31.91.60.759 63.43" 100.00%

Total Investments (A+B) I ,90,42,69 ,2s2 91.56"h
Net Current Assets t7 ,55 .63 ,495 8.44o/o

Net Assets 2.07.9832.717 r00.00%

Note l. 10070 provision has beeo made for Investment in Babcock Borsig Limited in Scheme 3A ard II*.FS Wind
Energ-)- Limited in Scheme 3A and 38. Refer note no. 2l and 22.

For the Year ended March 3l 2021
IL&FS
Infrastructure
Debt Fund

Aggregete
value of

Purchase
(Amount O

Percetrtage of
Average Net

Assets

Aggregate value of
Sales/Redemptions

(Amount t)

Percertage
of Average
Net Assets

Series 3B 1,O2,80,99,L77 72,64.8E,601

\
'p*(

IL&FS
Iofrastructure
Debt Fund

Aggregate
value of

Purchase
(Amount t)

Percetrtage of
Average Net

Assets

Aggregate value of
Sales/Redemptions

(Amount l)

Percentage
of Average
Net Assets

Series 3B 1,36,50,00,000 68.49o/o 7,11&s&77s 59.030/0

I,,IBAI

ACc

it

ss

For the Year ended March 3l 2023

(lE) Aggregste value of purchases and salev Redemptior/Rcpsymert
The aggregate value of investments purchased and sold (including redeemed) during the
period and expressed as percentage ofdaily average net assets are as follows:

-o

45.070/0 3l .85%



(19) Aggrcgate Fair value of Non-Tradcd lnvestments

The aggregate fair value of non-traded investments, valued in 'good faith' by the
Investment Manager on the basis of the valuation principles laid down by SEBI as

on 3l{ March 2024: NIL (As on 3l" March 2023: Nil)

The aggregate fair value of debt securities which have been valued at the price
other than the price given by the independent valuation agencies is as follows -

(Amount {)

.

lrrfrastructure
Debt Fund

As at March
31,2024

Percetrtage of
Net Assets

As at March
3 r, 2023

Percentage of
Net Ass€ts

Series 38 2,21.67.0 t.868 1.90.42.69.252 91.56./.

(20) Iovestmeot itr the Securities of the Sponsors atrd Group Companies ofthe Sponsors
The Company has following investnent in the securities of group companies of the
sponsors as at 3l'' March 2024.: NIL

The Company has following investment in the securities of group companies of the
sponsors as at 3l'r March 2023: NIL

(21) IL&FS IDF invested in Zero Coupon NCDs amounting to Rs. 2,000 million
issued by IWEL in September 2016.

Pursuant to rating downgrade of IWEL, IL&FS IDF had sought pre-payment of
the NCDs from IWEL.

The entire value of NCDs of IL&FS Wind Energy Ltd (IWEL) had been
provided for, as a conservative valuation approach, as on 30 September 202'l as
the NCDS had fallen due.

After series of legal actions, IDF has received Rs. 252.63 crores against
admitted claim of Rs. 254.66 crores. IDF has received -99Yo of its admitted
claims in July 2023 as per interim distribution by IWEL from the proceeds
received by IWEL fiom the sale of its wind SPVS to ORIX. Accordingly, IDF
has filed for withdrawal of its case from Hon'ble Supreme Court given the
substantial extent of recovery made in the account.

IDF has accounted the Income from amount recovered in its books of accounts
to the extent ofrecovery amounting to Rs. 15,78,92,803/-.

As per SEBI Regulations, IDF has made provision for the entire outstanding exposure in
IWEL. Summary ofprovisions made and recovery durtng the year ended March 31,2024 &
March 31,2023 is as given below:

March 31. ?024

o
,/,

Series
Opening
Provision

(A)

Proyision made
during the year

(B)

Reversal of
Provision made

during the year (C)

Closing
Provision (D) =

(A+B-C)
3B 15, 7,30.1 r5,78,92,803 3,64,501

MBAI

N\. cH/

I
KY

91.30%

(./)



Summary of provisions (across invesfinents) made during the year ended
March 3 l, 2024 is given below:

Summary of provisions (across investments) made during the year ended
March 3 l, 2023 is iven below:

(22) SEBI Regulations specifo the percentage of expenses that can be charged to schemes of
mutual fund. Accordingly, IDF has not charged full Audit fee (Booked only upto available
limit rest bome by Asset Management Company) to the schcmes. Also, certain other
operating expenses are charged to the schemes up to the permissible limit, and any excess
amounts have been bome by the Asset Management Company.

(23)

(24)

There are no unpaid redemption and unclaimed dividend as at March 31, 2024 (P.Y. Nil)

(a) There are no unit holders holding over 50olo of the net assets in the Schemes as at the
Balance Sheet dates.

(b) There are no amounts to be disclosed as required under SEBI Regulation 25 (l l) as the
Schemes have not made any investm€nts in the Companies or their Subsidiaries which
have invested more than 57o ofthe Net Asset Value for the period April l, 2023 to March
3t,2024.

(25) Rehted psrty disclosure and disclosure under regulation 25(8) ofSEB| Regulatiotrs
Related party disclosures pursuant to Accounting Standard lE ..Related party disclosure"
issued by the ICAI and disclosure under regulation 25(E) of SEBI Regulations are made as
under:
a) The following are the related parties by control with whom transaction have been entered

during the period:
. lnv€strnent Manager: - IL&FS Infra Asset Management Limited
. Trustee: - II"&FS AMC Trustee Limited
. Sponsor: - IILFS Investment Managers Limited

a

Series
Opening
Provision

(A)

Provision made
during the year

(B)

Reverssl of
Provision made

during the yesr (C)

Closing
Provision (D) =

(A+B-C)

]B t 5 ,82,57 ,304 t 5 ,E2,57 ,304

Series
Openin

Provisio
n(A)

Provision made
duringthe yeer
(B)

Reversal of
Provision made
during th€ ycar

(c)

Closing
Provision
(D) = (A+B-C)

3B 15.82,s7,304 15,78,92,803 3,64,501

Openin

Provisio
n(A)

Provision made
duringthe year
(B)

Reversal of
Provision made
during the year

(c)

Closing
Provision
(D) = (A+B-C)

3B 15,82,57,304 15,82,s7,304

MgAI

{\. cl,,

March 3 l. 2023
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Series



Serics 3BIL&FS
Infrastructure
Debt Fund Series

For the Year
ended March

31,2021

For the Year
ended March

31. 2023

Particulars

2,19,00,236 |,9t,32,722Management fees

r.99,304Trusreeship fees 2,28,135

Amount

b) Period-end payableVReceivables:
Amount

Q6) Contingent Liabilities/ Investment Commitrnent details are as under
Amount {

rThe allocation between different schemes of the mutual fund will be done by the fund
manager

(21) SegEent reporting
The Mutual fund is engaged in business of investing amounts received from investors as unit
capital, in accordance with their investment objectives to generate retums. The Investment
objective ofthe scheme is to generate income and capital appreciation by investing primarily
in infrastructure debt. Since there is only one business segment and no geographical segments,
the segmental reporting disclosures as required by Accounting Standard - 17 "Segmenl
Reporting" have not been made

al

CD

tl. o

/

Series 3B Series 3BIL&FS
lofrrstructurc
Debt Fund Series

As at March
31,2024

As at March
31, 2023

Particulars

18.24,851
Management Fees

Payable
2t,25,309

22,t39Trusteeship Fees

Payable

March 31. 2024 March 31, 2023Details
Nit NilUnderwriting Commitment

NilUncalled liability on partly paid-up
shares

Nil

Nillnvestment Commitment Nil

$.

a

o\ACC

19,009



(2E) Previous year's figurcs have b€en regouped and /or rearanged wherever to conespond to
figures of cunent year.

SignaturB to Not€s to Accounts

For Mukund. M. Chitale & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No. 106655W

For IL&FS Infra Asset Management Limited

Aihb-
Nand Kishore
Chairman
DIN:08267502

Manoj Borkar
Director
DN: 0006069E

S

5. M. chitate
Partner
M. No.l I l3E3 ,".*rt

Fundilanager

A"llv'nd@r'
I.EEHrTi5fi66
cEo

Director
DN: 05309663

For IL&FS AMC Trustee Limited

\-ry
Prabhudesai

Director
DIN: 08766338

Datei 24$ Jiuly 2024
Place: Mumbai
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